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RFP #9032 – Seismic Vulnerability Assessment 

 

 

Comments and answers in red. 

 

 

1. Article IV. Task 1.i of the RFP states that “accepted earthquake loss modeling 

procedures” should be utilized. Please provide clarification on which procedures are 

“accepted” and which are not. What are criteria for determining whether a given 

procedure is “accepted?” Can the Districts identify example procedures that are 

“accepted” and others that are not? 

 

Consultant should propose earthquake loss modeling procedures consistent with public 

entities conducting similar analysis to achieve results. 

 

2. The RFP does not mention the effects of aging on the seismic capability of the 

pipelines. Do the Districts have an existing asset management / aging management 

model of their systems? Since deteriorated pipes are more likely to fail, the 

deterioration model of the pipeline system should be considered in the seismic study. 

 

No. 

 

3. As with any risk study, the level of sophistication in the analysis is highly variable and 

dependent on available time, resources, and intended applications. For example, 

seismic fragilities of the buried pipelines and other related infrastructure can be simple, 

generic, and approximate, based on publicly available generic estimates, or they can be 

site-, and pipe-specific, considering network geometry, topography, deteriorated 

condition, etc. Results can be highly sensitive to differences between generic and 

specific fragilities for the most risk-important elements of the infrastructure network. 

Moreover, the scope of work and cost estimate will likewise be highly sensitive to the 

level of sophistication required for the study and the intended applications. The RFP 

does not specify a need for specific, detailed fragility work. In our estimation and based 

on our experience with similar projects, the results of this study will not be reliable 

without consideration of specific fragilities. What is the District’s plan for obtaining 

reliable results from this study by developing refined fragilities for the risk-important 

network elements? 

 

The District expects reasonably reliable results from the study. 

 

 



4. Article IV. Task 1.ii of the RFP states that an “event set” should be selected that 

“adequately represents the range and likelihood of earthquakes.” Can the Districts 

specify the acceptance criteria for determining whether an event set adequately 

represents the earthquakes? Currently, the specification is somewhat vague. 

 

Consultant should propose an event set which, in its opinion, represents the range and 

likelihood of potential earthquakes. 

 

5. Please clarify what is meant by a “profile” in Article IV.iv of the RFP. Is a “profile” 

equivalent to a statistical class of similar elements that share common attributes such 

that they can be grouped and represented by a single fragility? 

 

There is no Article IV, iv. The reference to “profile” at Task 1, item iv means to identify 

and describe vulnerabilities. 

 

6. Article IV. Task 1.vi requires repair costs and repair time estimates. Will the Districts 

provide historical data for repair costs and repair times upon which to base these 

estimates, or will the data need to be gathered from another source? If from another 

source, should it be a publicly available source? 

 

District will attempt to provide historical data for repair costs. Consultant may use 

other data sources it deems appropriate to achieve reliable results. 

 

7. As summarized in the background section of the RFP, the Districts operates a large 

network of pipelines. The variation of pipe types and connection details in the network 

will determine the level of effort in estimating the system-wide losses. Can the Districts 

provide as-built plan and elevation drawings of the pipe network and the design 

drawings of the pipe segments? 

 

District has a significant amount of engineering plans, drawings, and design 

information that may be available to the selected consultant as needed; however, an 

exhaustive review of these materials for all infrastructure is unreasonable and not 

considered part of the scope of this effort. 

 

8. The introduction (Article I) refers to quantification of earthquake loss exposure to 

underground pipelines, pumps stations, and the SRWTP. The deliverables (Article IV) 

refers to breaking down the results by pipeline segment / alignment but does not 

mention the pump stations or the SWRTP. While the SRWTP is specifically 

addressed in Article IV.Task 6 “The Districts will determine if this work is desired 

prior to entering into an agreement with the selected consultant”, it is not clear what 

form of deliverables and scope pertain to the pump stations. Can the Districts provide 

clarification? 

 

District will provide consultant with a schedule of assets. Three to five (3-5) major 

pump stations should be carefully examined. Consultant should expect to also review 

the schedule and select a representative sampling of smaller installations for 



examination and inclusion in its analysis. Pump stations should be given the level of 

analysis consistent with other assets included in this study. 

 

9. Related to the previous question, and anticipating that loss evaluation of the pump 

stations is within scope, can Districts clarify the level of effort involved? Is the 

evaluation expected to be limited to loss of structural integrity of the pump stations, or 

does it extend to a more complex evaluation of any potential effects that can lead to 

loss of function to the pump station system, e.g., loss of power sources and other pump 

station equipment? 

 

District is interested in loss evaluation from physical damage from seismic events which 

should include a discussion of potential loss of functionality from related effects. 

 

10. Article IV. Task IV.iii states that publicly available information on potential ground 

failure effects shall be used to address earthquake-induced liquefaction. Previous and 

following mentions of ground failures in the RFP are not specific to liquefaction. It is 

not clear how or whether this article is intended to apply to other earthquake-induced 

ground failure effects, e.g., lateral spreading and slope failures, or if it is specific to 

liquefaction assessment. If the latter, can the Districts clarify the scope of the RFP 

regarding other ground failure effects. 

 

District is interested in identifying ground failure effects and types of failure at various 

levels of seismic activity including but not limited to liquefaction. 

 

11. Article IV. Task 1.i and vi. Analysis of repair times following a major disaster is 

strongly affected by complex factors such as resource scarcity, labor scarcity, demand 

surge, disruption to lifelines, e.g., roads and bridges, competing priorities of responders, 

etc. An estimate based on the relatively stable socio-economic factors in disaster-free 

market conditions may be considered a lower-bound but can be grossly misleading. 

The uncertainty in the level of effort involved in executing this sub-task is enormous. 

Can the Districts clarify the basis upon which this requested estimate is envisioned? 

 

District is interested in understanding the range of possible repair times and cost 

following likely seismic events. District does not require an exhaustive analysis of 

repair times nor is a precise estimate of post-loss repair times needed at this time. 

 

12. Related to the previous question, the same logic and concerns apply to the estimation 

of repair/replacement costs, although with a relatively lower uncertainty range in post- 

disaster conditions. Can the Districts clarify whether the scope makes a distinction 

between loss estimate (loss of the present value of an asset) and repair/replacement 

costs (cost of repair/replacement under post-disaster conditions), and whether the scope 

involves the former, the latter, or both? If not the former, can the Districts explain the 

basis upon which the requested repair/replacement cost estimate is envisioned? 

 

See response to Question 11. 

 



13. Article IV. Task 1.v refers to modeling of the effects of spatial correlation of shaking 

intensity within a region. Can the Districts clarify whether the desired scope of 

modeling correlation is limited to the ground motion demands on different segments of 

the buried pipeline network, or extends to modeling the potential pipeline failures in 

each earthquake scenario as correlated events whose consequences get systematically 

propagated into the logic tree that calculates system-wide outcomes? 

 

Consultant should address modeling potential pipeline failures in each earthquake 

scenario as correlated events. 

 

14. Does Regional San / SASD have a budget in mind for this project?  

 

A hard line budget has not been established. District anticipates the contract will be 

administered through one District Engineer’s Agreement covering services for both 

agencies (maximum contract amount of $150.000). If the maximum ceiling price of 

the Agreement exceeds this amount, the Agreement is required to go to the Board of 

Directors for approval. 

 

15. Do the Districts have Level of Service goals in mind for the analysis? Task 2 – Item ii, 

indicates that the Consultant shall meet with the District’s engineers to discuss risk 

reduction strategies, but it does not indicate whether the following items will also be 

discussed: How quickly must the pipeline or pump station return to service? How much 

flow is required to be conveyed and / or treated? What is an acceptable amount off SSO 

spillage after a given earthquake event? What level of treatment is required after a 

seismic event?  

 

See response to Question 11. 

 

16. Will geotechnical logs for the pipelines and pump stations be provided to the selected 

consultant or should we plan on performing geotechnical field investigations? 

 

No geotechnical field investigations are anticipated under the scope of services.  Some 

geotechnical logs for pipelines and pump stations may be provided. 

 

See responses to Questions 7 and 8. 

 

17. Lastly, will the Conflict of Interest Affidavit count against the page limit?  

 

The Conflict of Interest avadavat will not count against the 20 page proposal limit. 

 

18. Is there a specific format required to document the level of effort? 

 

No specific format. Information required in Section VI. F. of the RFP (Level of Effort) 

should be provided. 

 



19. The RFP calls for references from three public agencies. Are private employers / 

institutions acceptable? 

 

References from private employers/institutions will be acceptable. Proposers are 

encouraged to include references from public agencies if available. 

 

20. Is there an SBE / MBE requirement, or does this affect scoring? 

 

There is no SBE/MBE requirement but proposers are encouraged to solicit 

involvement from these types of firms. Scoring will not be affected by this. 

 

21. There may be many mitigation options that are available. We intend to identify a 

certain number of options that will be examined as part of our proposal. Do you have 

a figure in mind? 

 

The consultant should include the number of mitigation options that will be examined 

as part of their proposal with justification. That number proposed should reflect the 

amount of options the consultant anticipates is necessary and can be part of the contract 

negotiations if the consultant is selected. 

 

22. How will this project be coordinated between the two agencies? Will there be one PM 

leading a committee mixed with both agencies, etc.? 

 

One project manager will lead the effort for the two Districts with a mix of 

representation on the project team. 

 

23. What is the overall budget for this project? 

 

See response to question 14. 

 

24. The RFP mostly addresses pipelines, but mentions 100+ pump stations and the 

Regional San WWTP. Are you still intending to include pump stations and the WWTP 

at this point? If so, will record drawings be available? 

 

See responses to Questions 7 and 8. 

 


